
�

������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� London�Assembly��
(Mayor's�Question�Time)�

Date� Wednesday�2�July�2014�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

�
Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�
past�meetings.�
�
�

A�meeting�of�the�Assembly�will�be�held�to�deal�with�the�business�listed�below.�This�meeting�will�be�
open�to�the�public.�There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.�
�
Roger�Evans�AM��
Chairman�of�the�London�Assembly�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�
Deputy�Chair�

� Tuesday�24�June�2014�
�
�
Further�Information�
�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�John�Barry,�Senior�Committee�Officer�Telephone:�020�7983�4425;�E-mail:�
john.barry@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458.�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact:�Mark�Demery,�Tel:�020�7983�5769,�Email:�mark.demery@london.gov.uk��
Minicom:�020�7983�4458.�
�
If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�reports�please�contact�the�report�author�whose�details�are�
at�the�end�of�each�report.��
�
There�is�limited�underground�parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�
first-come�first-served�basis.��Please�contact�Facilities�Management�(020�7983�4750)�in�advance�if�
you�require�a�parking�space�or�further�information.�
�
Proper�Officer:�Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
London�Assembly�(Mayor's�Question�Time)��
Wednesday�2�July�2014�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chairman's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chairman.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;��
�
(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�
Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and��

�
(c)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�
which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�
of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�
Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�
action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�

�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�8)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�London�Assembly�

(Mayor’s�Question�Time)�meeting�held�on�11�June�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�
Chairman�as�a�correct�record.�
�

� The�appendices�to�the�minutes�of�the�11�June�(Mayor's�Question�Time)�meeting�(including�the�
transcript�of�the�question�and�answer�session�held�at�that�meeting)�have�been�circulated�to�
Assembly�Members�separately.�Transcripts�and�written�answers�for�past�meetings�can�be�
downloaded�from�http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-
assembly�
�
�

4 Mayor's�Report�(Pages�9�-�42)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�note�the�Mayor’s�Report�covering�the�period�from�

29�May�to�18�June�2014.�
�

� A�list�of�all�the�decisions�taken�during�the�same�period�is�attached,�for�Members�only,�on�pages�
29�to�41,�as�a�background�complementary�paper�to�the�Mayor’s�Report�(and�as�previously�
published).�This�document�can�also�be�downloaded�at:�http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-
assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�



�

4�
�

�
�

5 Questions�to�the�Mayor��
�
� (To�be�circulated�separately)�

�
Part�A:�
The�Assembly�will�put�questions�to�the�Mayor.�
�
Part�B:�
Motion�submitted�in�the�name�of�the�Chairman:�
�
“That�the�Assembly�notes�the�answers�to�the�questions�asked.”�
�

� (The�list�of�questions�to�be�put�to�the�Mayor�can�also�be�downloaded�at:�
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly)�
�
�

6 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�scheduled�meeting�of�the�London�Assembly�will�be�the�Plenary�meeting�which�will�

take�place�at�10.00am�on�Wednesday�16�July�2014�in�the�Chamber,�City�Hall.��
�
�

7 Any�Other�Business�the�Chairman�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�

�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Mayor’s
Question
Time)



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
2
July
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications



4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Senior�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�
E-mail:� John.Barry@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 London
Assembly


(Mayor's
Question
Time)


Date:
 Wednesday
11
June
2014

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-
assembly/whole-assembly�


�
Present:

�
Roger�Evans�AM�(Chairman)�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�

Tony�Arbour�AM�

Gareth�Bacon�AM�

John�Biggs�AM�

James�Cleverly�AM�

Tom�Copley�AM�

Andrew�Dismore�AM�

Len�Duvall�AM�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�

Darren�Johnson�AM�

�

Jenny�Jones�AM�

Stephen�Knight�AM�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�

Joanne�McCartney�AM�

Steve�O'Connell�AM�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�

Murad�Qureshi�AM�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�

Navin�Shah�AM�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�

Fiona�Twycross�AM�

�

�
�

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Mayor's
Question
Time)


Wednesday
11
June
2014


�

�
��

�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1 Apologies�for�absence�were�received�from�Andrew�Boff�AM,�Victoria�Borwick�AM�and�Richard�
Tracey�AM.�
�

1.2 The�Chair�welcomed�to�the�meeting�students�from�The�Citadel,�The�Military�College�of�South�
Carolina�and�students�from�the�News�Associates�journalism�school.�

�
�

2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�



2.1
 Resolved:





That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at
Agenda


Item
2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.

�
�

3 Minutes
(Item
3)�



3.1� Resolved:





That
the
minutes
from
the
London
Assembly
(Annual
Meeting)
meeting
held
on


14
May
2014
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a
correct
record.

�
�

4 Mayor's
Report
(Item
4)�



4.1� The�Assembly�noted�the�Mayor’s�Report�covering�the�period�from�6�March�to�28�May�2014.�

�

4.2� In�accordance�with�Standing�Order�5.4A,�the�Mayor�gave�an�oral�update�on�matters�occurring�

since�the�publication�of�his�report.�The�record�of�the�oral�update�is�attached�as�Appendix
1.�
�
�

5 Questions
to
the
Mayor
(Item
5)�



5.1� The�record�of�the�discussion�with�the�Mayor,�including�oral�answers�given�by�the�Mayor�to�

Members’�questions,�is�attached�as�Appendix
2.�

�

5.2� The�written�answers�to�those�questions�not�asked�or�unanswered�during�the�meeting�is�

attached�as�Appendix
3.�

�

5.3� During�the�course�of�the�question�and�answer�session�the�Chair�proposed,�and�it�was�agreed,�

that�Standing�Order�2.9B�be�suspended�to�extend�the�meeting�in�order�to�allow�the�remaining�

questions�on�the�priority�order�paper�to�be�put�to�the�Mayor�and�for�the�remaining�items�of�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Mayor's
Question
Time)


Wednesday
11
June
2014


�

�
��

�

business�on�the�agenda�to�be�considered.�

�
5.4� At�the�conclusion�of�the�question�and�answer�session,�the�Assembly�agreed�the�motion�set�out�

on�the�agenda�in�the�name�of�the�Chair,�namely:��
�

“That
the
Assembly
notes
the
answers
to
the
questions
asked”.

�
�

6 Appointment
of
Independent
Persons
(Item
6)�



6.1� Resolved:




That
the
appointments
of
Suzanne
McCarthy
and
Alan
Simcock
as
Independent

Persons
under
Section
28(7)
of
the
Localism
Act
2011,
to
assist
in
the
complaints-
handling
process
under
the
GLA’s
Standards
regime,
be
extended
to
30
June
2016,

noting
that
the
extensions
are
also
subject
to
approval
by
the
Mayor.�

�
�

7 Changes
to
Membership
of
the
Police
and
Crime
Committee
(Item
7)�



7.1
 Resolved:




a) That,
further
to
nominations
received
from
the
London
Assembly
Labour
Group,

John
Biggs
AM
be
appointed
as
a
member
of
the
Police
and
Crime
Committee,
to

replace
Fiona
Twycross
AM;
and




b) That
Fiona
Twycross
AM
be
appointed
as
a
substitute
member
of
the
Police
and

Crime
Committee,
to
replace
John
Biggs
AM.


�
�

8 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
8)�



8.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�London�Assembly�would�be�the�Plenary�meeting�scheduled�to�take�
place�at�10.30am�on�Wednesday�18�June�2014�in�the�Chamber,�City�Hall.�

�
�

9 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
9)�



9.1� There�were�no�items�of�urgent�business.�
�
�

10 Close
of
Meeting
�



10.1� The�meeting�finished�at�12.42pm.�
�
�
�
�

Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Mayor's
Question
Time)


Wednesday
11
June
2014


�

�
��

�

�
�
� � � �
Chair� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 John�Barry�

Senior�Committee�Officer�
GLA�Secretariat,�City�Hall�
The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
�

Telephone:
 020�7983�4425�
Email:
 john.barry@london.gov.uk�
�

Page 8



 

London�Assembly�
MQT�–�2�July�2014�
22nd�Mayor’s�Report�to�the�Assembly�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Executive�Summary�
�
London�housing�zones�to�create�50,000�new�homes�
�
On�13�June,�alongside�the�Chancellor�of�the�Exchequer,�the�Rt�Hon�George�Osborne�MP,�I�
announced�that�twenty�new�housing�zones�will�be�created�in�London,�delivering�50,000�new�
homes.��
�
Housing�zones�are�a�new�approach�to�get�new�homes�built�quickly.�Local�authorities�identify�
and�package�together�brownfield�land�which�could�be�used�for�development�into�a�housing�
zone,�remove�all�unnecessary�planning�restrictions�across�it�and�partner�with�a�developer�to�
build�new�homes.�The�absence�of�planning�constraints�in�these�zones�will�significantly�
accelerate�construction.��
��
Last�November,�my�draft�Housing�Strategy�set�out�plans�for�ten�potential�housing�zones,�but�
this�announcement�now�doubles�that�number�as�central�government�and�the�GLA�each�offer�
£200�million�for�twenty�zones.�
���
Commonwealth�Games�Queen's�Baton�Relay�
�
On�6�June,�I�was�joined�by�Olympic,�World�and�Commonwealth�Champion,�Christine�Ohuruogu�
MBE�and�local�schoolchildren�to�welcome�the�Commonwealth�Games�Queen's�Baton�Relay�to�
the�capital,�part�of�the�England�leg�of�a�journey�that�will�see�it�travel�190,000�kilometres�over�
288�days.�On�8�June,�the�Queen’s�Baton�made�its�way�through�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�
as�part�of�the�run�up�to�Games.��
�
Approval�of�Westfield�expansion�
�
On�30�May,�I�approved�plans�to�extend�the�Westfield�Shopping�Centre�in�Shepherds�Bush�and�
build�more�than�1,300�homes.�
�
The�£1�billion�scheme�will�be�anchored�by�a�John�Lewis�department�store,�the�first�in�West�
London.�The�development�will�also�include�restaurants�and�cafes,�office�space,�a�children’s�play�
space�and�a�new�leisure�complex.�It�is�expected�that�the�expansion�will�create�around�6,700�
permanent�new�jobs.�
�
Number�of�people�killed�and�seriously�injured�on�London’s�roads�at�lowest�level�ever�
�
On�11�June,�I�announced�that�the�number�of�people�killed�and�seriously�injured�(KSI)�on�
London’s�roads�fell�23�per�cent�during�2013�to�their�lowest�levels�since�records�began.�
Pedestrian�KSIs�were�also�significantly�down�during�2013�with�the�total�number�down�25�per�
cent�compared�to�2012.�The�figures,�which�cover�the�period�between�January�and�December�

This�is�my�twenty-second�report�to�the�Assembly,�fulfilling�my�duty�under�Section�45�of�the�
Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999.��It�covers�the�period�29�May�to�18�June.�

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

2013,�also�show�that�the�total�number�of�road�casualties�in�London�fell�by�around�five�per�cent�
to�their�lowest�ever�levels.�
�
To�find�out�more�about�what�TfL�is�doing�to�tackle�road�safety�more�widely,�please�visit:�
www.tfl.gov.uk/roadsafety.��
�
�

Policing,�Crime�and�Community�Safety��

�
Gangs�Summit�
�
On�2�June,�I�spoke�at�the�Policing�Global�Cities�Gangs�Summit�2014,�which�was�hosted�by�my�
Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime,�Stephen�Greenhalgh.�Its�aim�was�to�convene�leading�
experts�and�senior�practitioners�from�around�the�world�to�explore�new�findings�and�approaches�
to�gang�crime�in�London�and�other�comparable�global�cities.��
�
The�London�Crime�Reduction�Board’s�Strategic�Ambitions:�Gangs�and�Serious�Youth�Violence�
document�was�also�launched.�Its�aim�is�to�reduce�the�harm�to�individuals�and�communities�
caused�by�gangs�and�serious�youth�violence�in�London.�Its�focus�is�on�prevention,�intervention�
and�enforcement.�
�
London�Crime�Reduction�Board�
�
On�9�June,�I�chaired�the�quarterly�meeting�of�the�London�Crime�Reduction�Board.�The�Board�
discussed�developing�an�integrated�approach�to�Victims’�Services�and�agreed�to�include�victims�
as�a�priority�for�their�work.�The�achievements�that�have�been�made�to�date�on�gangs,�reducing�
reoffending�and�anti-social�behaviour�were�also�reviewed.�The�Senior�Officer�Group�that�
supports�the�Board�has�been�tasked�to�scope�and�examine�the�challenges�ahead�to�ensure�that�
the�Board’s�strategic�leadership�remains�focussed�in�the�right�areas.���
�
Violence�Against�Women�and�Girls�
�
On�3�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime,�Stephen�Greenhalgh,�met�with�Minister�
Turia�from�New�Zealand.�They�held�a�round�table�discussion�with�representatives�from�Imkaan,�
MPS,�Crown�Prosecution�Service,�two�London�boroughs,�the�EVAW�Coalition�and�Respect.�
There�was�a�valuable�exchange�of�ideas�where�both�representatives�from�New�Zealand�and�
London�gained�a�greater�understanding�of�respective�approaches�to�tackling�violence�against�
women�and�girls.�
�
�

Transport�
�
Number�of�people�killed�and�seriously�injured�on�London’s�roads�at�lowest�level�ever�
�
On�11�June,�I�announced�that�the�number�of�people�killed�and�seriously�injured�(KSI)�on�
London’s�roads�fell�23�per�cent�during�2013�to�their�lowest�levels�since�records�began.�
Pedestrian�KSIs�were�also�significantly�down�during�2013�with�the�total�number�down�25�per�
cent�compared�to�2012.�The�figures,�which�cover�the�period�between�January�and�December�
2013,�also�show�that�the�total�number�of�road�casualties�in�London�fell�by�around�five�per�cent�
to�their�lowest�ever�levels.�
�

Page 10



 

The�reduction�in�the�total�number�of�people�killed�and�seriously�injured�during�2013�now�
means�that�London�remains�on�track�to�achieve�my�target�to�reduce�the�number�of�people�
killed�or�seriously�injured�on�London’s�roads�by�40�per�cent�by�2020�(from�a�2005-09�baseline),�
with�2013�progress�meaning�that�London�is�now�36�per�cent�below�the�2005-09�average.�
�
Highlights�from�the�road�safety�data�for�2013�shows:��
��

o There�were�132�fatalities�on�London’s�roads�in�2013,�the�second�lowest�number�since�
records�began,�with�fatalities�involving�pedestrians�down�six�per�cent�(65�down�from�
69);�

o Deaths�involving�powered�two-wheeled�riders�also�fell�by�19�per�cent�(22�down�from�
27),�while�cyclist�deaths�remained�the�same�at�14;�

o During�2013�there�were�475�serious�injuries�to�cyclists,�compared�with�657�in�2012�–�
this�27�per�cent�reduction�means�that�around�one�in�every�433,000�cycle�journeys�
made�in�London�end�in�the�cyclist�being�killed�or�seriously�injured;�

o Pedestrian�KSIs�were�also�significantly�down�during�2013,�with�the�total�number�down�
25�per�cent�compared�to�2012�(838�down�from�1,123).�This�is�also�31�per�cent�down�
when�compared�to�the�2005-2009�baseline�and�55�per�cent�down�when�compared�to�
the�year�2000�(838�down�from�1,870).�

o The�number�of�children�killed�and�seriously�injured�continued�to�fall�across�London�in�
2013,�with�a�31�per�cent�reduction�to�187�(down�from�270�in�2012).�This�is�also�a�
reduction�of�around�three�quarters�when�compared�to�the�year�2000,�showing�the�
continuing�long-term�progress�in�London�in�making�its�streets�safer�for�all.�
�

To�find�out�more�about�what�TfL�is�doing�to�tackle�road�safety�more�widely,�please�visit:�
www.tfl.gov.uk/roadsafety�
�
Aviation�Conference�
�
On�18�June,�I�attended�an�aviation�conference,�alongside�the�Chairman�of�the�Airports�
Commission,�Sir�Howard�Davies,�and�representatives�behind�proposals�for�airport�expansion�at�
Gatwick,�Heathrow�and�in�the�Thames�Estuary,�to�discuss�airport�expansion.�We�were�also�
joined�at�the�conference�by�experts�in�city�planning�and�aviation�from�both�London�and�
overseas.��
�
The�conference�focussed�on�the�contribution�new�airport�capacity�can�make�to�meet�the�
challenges�of�finding�homes�and�jobs�for�the�extra�two�million�people�expected�to�be�living�in�
London�by�2030.��
�
With�London’s�population�forecast�to�increase�by�over�20�per�cent�by�2030�and�37�per�cent�by�
2050,�I�am�determined�to�ensure�that�a�long�overdue�decision�on�the�best�location�for�airport�
expansion�takes�the�growth�of�London,�and�the�requirement�for�hundreds�of�thousands�of�new�
jobs�and�homes�into�account.��
�
Piccadilly�and�Jubilee�line�services�increased�as�record�journeys�made�on�Tube�
�
London�Underground�(LU)�carried�more�customers�and�ran�more�train�services�than�ever�before�
during�2013-14�and,�in�order�to�meet�this�continuing�demand,�LU�has�introduced�new�
timetables�on�two�of�the�network’s�busiest�lines,�the�Jubilee�and�Piccadilly.�This�will�provide�
customers�with�more�frequent�services�and�ensure�that�the�capital�maintains�its�role�as�the�
engine�room�of�the�UK�economy.�
��

Page 11



 

The�end�of�year�figures�show�that�LU�carried�1.265�billion�passengers�in�2013-14,�compared�to�
1.229�billion�the�previous�year.�The�year-on-year�growth�of�three�per�cent�continues�the�
rapidly�rising�demand�for�Tube�services,�with�passenger�numbers�up�by�a�third�over�the�last�ten�
years.�
��
LU�also�ran�more�services�than�ever�before,�with�nearly�an�extra�600,000�kms�operated�over�the�
year.�Despite�the�record�levels�of�customer�demand�delays�fell�to�their�lowest�level.�Delays�to�
customers�have�been�reduced�by�54�per�cent�since�2004,�and�34�per�cent�since�2008.�
�
Exhibition�and�consultation�on�Bank�station�upgrade�construction�plans��
�
On�12�and�13�June,�customers�and�City�organisations�were�given�the�opportunity�to�have�their�
say�on�TfL’s�construction�proposals�for�a�major�upgrade�of�Bank�station�through�an�online�
public�consultation�and�two-day�exhibition.��
��
TfL�is�proposing�to�substantially�upgrade�the�capacity�of�Bank�station�from�2016.�This�will�
provide�more�space�to�get�on�and�off�Northern�line�trains,�quicker�interchange,�and�improved�
accessibility.�
��
The�Bank/Monument�station�complex,�located�in�the�heart�of�the�City�of�London’s�financial�
district,�is�the�fourth�busiest�interchange�station�on�the�Underground�network,�with�98�million�
customers�using�the�station�in�2012/13.�This�is�set�to�increase�in�the�coming�years,�so�TfL�is�
planning�a�major�upgrade�of�the�six-line�interchange�which�will�increase�capacity�and�provide�a�
step-free�route�between�the�Northern�line�platforms,�Docklands�Light�Railway�and�street�level.��
�
TfL�appoints�London�Overground�operator�to�run�additional�services�
�
TfL�has�announced�the�appointment�on�an�interim�basis�of�London�Overground�Rail�Operations�
Ltd�(LOROL)�to�run�local�services�out�of�Liverpool�Street�Station�to�north�east�London�and�
improve�standards�for�passengers.�
��
LOROL�will�run�the�services,�currently�managed�under�the�Greater�Anglia�franchise,�between�
Liverpool�Street�and�Enfield�Town,�Cheshunt�(via�Seven�Sisters)�and�Chingford,�as�well�as�those�
on�the�Romford�to�Upminster�line�for�17�months�starting�on�31�May�next�year.�The�London�
Overground�concession,�including�these�latest�additions,�will�then�be�re-let�following�an�
established�bidding�process.�
��
Under�TfL,�and�from�day�one�of�the�transfer,�passengers�can�look�forward�to�seeing�staff�at�all�
London�Overground�managed�stations�while�trains�are�running.�Their�presence�will�bring�
immediate�improvements�to�station�security,�safety�and�accessibility.�Oyster�will�continue�to�be�
available�to�passengers�who�will�also�be�able�to�use�contactless�payment�cards�for�the�same�
PAYG�fare.�They�will�be�able�to�take�advantage�of�TfL’s�extensive�multi-media�travel�service�
information.�
�
Formal�process�underway�for�High�Court�ruling�on�taximeters��
�
TfL,�as�the�regulator�of�taxi�and�private�hire�trades�in�the�capital,�has�now�commenced�the�
formal�process�for�securing�a�High�Court�ruling�on�taximeters.�
�
TfL�is�seeking�a�ruling�on�whether�smart�phones�in�private�hire�vehicles�that�use�GPS�
technology�to�measure�the�time�and�distance�of�a�journey�and�then�receive�information�about�
fares,�comply�with�current�law�on�'taximeters',�which�can�only�be�used�in�London�by�taxis.�

Page 12



 

�
Formal�'letters�before�action'�have�now�been�issued�to�Uber�and�the�main�trade�bodies,�the�
Licensed�Taxi�Drivers�Association�and�the�Licensed�Private�Hire�Car�Association,�proposing�that�
they�will�be�called�to�take�part�in�the�action�being�brought�by�TfL.�
�
TfL�has�set�out�its�provisional�view�that�smart�phones�used�by�private�hire�drivers�do�not�
constitute�the�equipping�of�a�vehicle�with�a�‘taximeter’.�However,�given�the�level�of�concern�
among�the�trade,�and�the�fact�that�some�of�the�legislation�in�this�area�is�unclear�and�able�to�be�
interpreted�in�various�ways,�TfL�is�inviting�the�High�Court�to�give�a�binding�determination�on�
this�issue.�
��
Wheels�in�motion�as�TfL�seek�new�sponsor�for�London’s�iconic�Cycle�Hire�scheme��
�
On�2�June,�TfL�announced�it�had�begun�seeking�expressions�of�interest�to�sponsor�the�London�
Cycle�Hire�scheme.�This�is�a�unique�and�exciting�chance�for�the�private�sector�to�be�associated�
with�one�of�London’s�internationally�recognisable�forms�of�transport�and�to�gain�
unprecedented�exposure�across�London.��
��
The�scheme,�which�is�already�the�second�largest�cycle�hire�system�in�Europe,�recently�
celebrated�30�million�journeys�since�its�launch�in�2010�and�remains�a�popular�and�affordable�
way�to�travel�around�London�for�work�or�leisure.��
�
The�scheme�has�had�a�fantastic�four�years�with�the�current�sponsor,�Barclays,�and�has�seen�
many�exciting�developments�since�the�launch,�with�an�expansion�to�east�London�in�2012�and�
south�west�London�last�year.�The�current�sponsorship�ends�in�summer�2015�but�a�new�sponsor�
could�be�in�place�early�next�year.��
�
Last�day�in�service�for�the�C-stock�as�modern�air-conditioned�trains�introduced�
�
On�3�June,�one�of�the�Tube’s�oldest�trains�bowed�out�of�the�commuter�run�when�the�last�of�
the�old�C-stock�trains�on�the�Edgware�Road�to�Wimbledon�branch�took�commuters�to�and�from�
work�for�the�final�time.���
�
The�C-stock�trains�have�operated�on�the�Circle,�Hammersmith�&�City�and�on�the�District�line�
between�Edgware�Road�and�Wimbledon�for�over�40�years�but�have�become�increasingly�
unreliable�and�costly�to�maintain�as�time�has�gone�on.�Since�2010,�new�modern�walk�through�
air-conditioned�trains�have�been�introduced�to�the�Metropolitan,�Hammersmith�and�City�and�
Circle�lines,�bringing�increased�capacity�and�more�pleasant�and�reliable�journeys�to�millions�of�
passengers.�The�new�trains�are�more�accessible,�spacious,�are�equipped�with�better�audio,�
visual�and�CCTV�systems�and�have�an�energy�efficient�braking�system.�
�
DfT�and�TfL�publish�report�setting�out�options�for�step�free�Crossrail�
�
On�3�June,�the�joint�sponsors�of�Crossrail,�the�Department�for�Transport�(DfT)�and�TfL,�
reaffirmed�their�aim�of�making�the�entire�route�accessible�and�published�options�to�make�the�
remaining�seven�stations�step�free.�
�
The�route�will�serve�40�stations�from�Reading�and�Maidenhead�in�the�west�and�Shenfield�and�
Abbey�Wood�in�the�east.�Eight�stations�are�already�step�free�and�work�is�underway�to�upgrade�
or�build�25�more�to�give�step�free�access�for�the�first�time.�The�joint�sponsors�are�working�on�
plans�for�the�remaining�seven.����
�

Page 13



 

The�report�sets�out�practical,�workable�solutions�that�could�be�implemented�at�Seven�Kings,�
Maryland,�Manor�Park,�Hanwell,�Iver,�Taplow�and�Langley.�Further�work�will�be�undertaken�to�
verify�technical�and�engineering�assumptions,�as�well�as�further�develop�the�plans.�TfL�and�the�
DfT�are�currently�looking�at�funding�options�to�pay�for�these�improvements.�
�
TfL�introduces�Oyster�‘One�More�Journey’�on�London’s�buses�
�
On�8�June,�TfL�introduced�Oyster�‘One�More�Journey’,�allowing�passengers�to�make�one�more�
bus�journey�should�they�have�insufficient�pay�as�you�go�credit�to�travel.�
�
This�new�facility�supports�the�move�to�cash�free�bus�travel,�which�is�being�introduced�across�
the�capital’s�bus�network�from�Sunday�6�July.�It�was�developed�following�extensive�research�
which�showed�nine�out�of�ten�passengers�who�paid�a�cash�fare�did�so�because�either�had�
insufficient�pay�as�go�credit�to�travel�or�had�left�their�Oyster�card�at�home.�
�
Its�introduction�is�one�month�earlier�than�planned�and�follows�a�successful�trial�on�around�500�
buses�operating�on�60�routes�in�the�capital.��Since�the�trial�started,�around�1,500�passengers�a�
day�have�benefited�from�the�added�convenience�this�facility�gives,�ensuring�they�can�continue�
their�onward�journey�whether�it’s�to�get�them�home�or�to�the�nearest�Oyster�Ticket�Stop�where�
they�can�top�up�for�future�travel.��
�
The�new�feature�is�available�to�any�passenger�who�presents�an�Oyster�card�for�travel�that�has�a�
positive�balance�but�insufficient�credit�to�pay�for�their�bus�journey.��They�will�receive�an�
emergency�fare�advice�slip�to�acknowledge�that�the�Oyster�‘One�More�Journey’�feature�has�
been�used�and�to�remind�them�that�their�card�needs�to�be�topped�up�before�another�journey�
can�be�made.�Passengers�using�rear�door�Oyster�readers�on�multi-entry�buses,�such�as�New�
Routemasters,�will�be�prompted�to�speak�to�the�driver�and�use�the�reader�at�the�front�of�bus�to�
receive�their�emergency�fare�advice�slip.��This�‘One�More�Journey’�emergency�fare�will�take�the�
Oyster�card�into�a�negative�balance�which�will�be�cleared�when�the�pay�as�you�go�balance�is�
topped�up.�
�
Crime�on�London’s�transport�system�at�lowest�ever�level�
�
On�4�June,�new�annual�crime�figures�published�by�the�MPS�and�British�Transport�Police�(BTP)�
showed�that�crime�on�TfL’s�transport�network�fell�11.3�per�cent�compared�to�the�year�before.��
��
The�figures,�covering�2013/14�(1�April�2013�to�31�March�2014),�show�that�there�are�now�just�
7.7�crimes�per�million�passenger�journeys�on�the�transport�system,�down�from�8.9�in�2012/13.��
�
The�reduction�also�means�that�the�rate�of�crime�for�LU,�Docklands�Light�Railway,�London�
Tramlink,�London�Overground�and�buses�remain�at�their�lowest�level�since�recording�began.��
�
Crime�on�the�bus�network�has�continued�to�fall�every�year�for�the�last�eight�years,�with�just�7.5�
crimes�per�million�passenger�journeys�in�2013/14,�down�from�8.6�in�2012/13.�This�is�less�than�
half�the�crime�rate�in�2007/8,�when�levels�were�at�a�rate�of�15.2�crimes�per�million�passenger�
journeys.�On�LU/Docklands�Light�Railway,�the�rate�of�crime�has�nearly�halved�since�2007/8,�
when�levels�were�at�a�rate�of�14.4�crimes�per�million�passenger�journeys.�
�
Crossrail�reveals�redesigned�proposals�for�improvements�to�Ealing�Broadway�station�
��
On�2�June,�Crossrail�announced�it�had�submitted�redesigned�proposals�for�improvement�to�the�
station�at�Ealing�Broadway.�Since�submitting�proposals�at�the�end�of�last�year,�Crossrail�has�

Page 14



 

been�working�closely�with�Ealing�Council,�local�developers�and�nearby�landowners�to�broaden�
the�scheme�and�revise�the�plans�for�the�station.�There�has�also�been�close�consultation�with�the�
local�MP�and�community�groups,�allowing�them�the�opportunity�to�comment�on�the�designs.�
�
The�new�proposals�for�the�station,�designed�by�Bennetts�Associates�Architects,�include�the�
addition�of�a�long,�curved�canopy�running�the�length�of�the�forecourt�that�reflects�the�
prominence�and�importance�of�the�station�building.���
�
Crossrail’s�plans�allow�for�the�current�dated�façade�to�be�replaced�with�a�new�glass�structure�
and�a�new�entrance�twice�the�size�of�the�existing�one,�which�will�allow�much�more�natural�light�
into�the�building.�
�
Crossrail�exhibits�design�proposals�for�areas�around�stations�
�
Crossrail�has�announced�an�exhibition�of�initial�design�proposals�for�public�areas�surrounding�
31�of�its�stations.�The�designs�offer�a�vision�of�how�areas�outside�stations�could�appear�in�the�
future,�and�include�landscaped�areas,�better�way-finding�and�enhanced�integration�with�other�
transport�services�across�London�and�beyond.�
�
The�design�proposals�are�at�a�high�level�and�subject�to�further�revision,�in�close�consultation�
with�local�authorities�and�other�stakeholders.�The�‘Crossrail�Places�and�Spaces’�exhibition�took�
place�at�City�Hall�until�13�June,�and�will�move�to�the�Royal�Institute�of�British�Architects�from�
16�June�and�The�Building�Centre�from�21�July�until�14�August.�
�
Areas�outside�the�stations�included�in�these�proposals�are�equivalent�in�size�to�19�Leicester�
Squares.�The�proposals�aim�to�be�attractive,�accessible,�free�from�clutter,�safe�and�adaptable,�
so�they�can�change�over�time.�They�also�aim�to�be�diverse�and�characteristic�of�their�local�area,�
stimulating�regeneration�opportunities�by�giving�confidence�to�local�communities�and�
investors.�
�
The�initial�proposals�include�24�new�station�forecourts,�12�improved�forecourts,�1,335�new�
cycle�parking�places,�328�new�trees�and�20�new�pedestrian�crossings.�Designs�for�many�areas�
include�wider�pavements,�new�pedestrian�areas�(including�pedestrian�prioritisation),�paving,�
signage�and�road�alterations�to�slow�and�reduce�road�traffic�and�improving�safety.�
�
Crossrail�begins�new�Docklands�tunnel�drive�
�
On�4�June,�Crossrail�announced�the�start�of�work�on�its�shortest�tunnel�drive�from�Limmo�
Peninsula,�beside�Canning�Town�station,�towards�Victoria�Dock�Portal�in�east�London.�
�
Tunnelling�machine�Jessica,�named�after�British�Olympic�champion�Jessica�Ennis-Hill�CBE,�will�
create�the�900m�tunnel�forming�part�of�the�south-east�spur�of�London’s�new�rail�line.�The�
tunnel�begins�from�a�35m�deep�access�shaft�alongside�the�mouth�of�the�River�Lea,�and�will�run�
to�Victoria�Dock�Portal,�where�the�Crossrail�tracks�reach�the�surface�at�Custom�House�station.�It�
is�Jessica’s�second�tunnelling�mission,�having�already�completed�a�tunnel�from�Pudding�Mill�
Lane,�near�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park,�to�Stepney�Green�over�the�winter.�
�
Jessica’s�launch�continues�Crossrail’s�good�progress�with�over�80�per�cent�of�rail�tunnels�now�
complete.�Later�this�year�Jessica’s�sister�machine�Ellie�will�create�the�second�tunnel�from�
Limmo�Peninsula�to�Victoria�Dock�Portal.�Crossrail�is�creating�42�kilometres�of�bored�tunnels�
using�eight�tunnel�boring�machines,�four�of�which�have�already�retired�
�

Page 15



 

�

Regeneration,�Enterprise�and�the�Economy�
�
£25m�for�an�SME�Equity�Finance�Fund�for�London�
�
In�June,�I�approved�the�allocation�of�£25�million�London�Enterprise�Panel�funding�for�the�
creation�of�an�investment�fund�which�will�provide�equity�finance�to�early�stage�SMEs,�with�a�
focus�on�those�in�the�high�value�digital,�science�and�technology�sectors.���
�
The�fund�will�secure�additional�private�sector�co-investment�of�at�least�£2.9�per�£1�of�SME�
investment�almost�tripling�the�fund.�The�London�Co-Investment�Fund,�to�be�delivered�by�SME�
Wholesale�Finance�and�Capital�Enterprise,�will�be�launched�in�the�autumn�following�
procurement�of�co-investment�partners�from�the�business�angels�and�venture�capital�
community.�
�
London�Festival�of�Architecture�
�
On�29�May,�my�Deputy�Mayor�for�Housing,�Land�and�Property�launched�The�London�Festival�
of�Architecture�(LFA).�LFA�is�a�city-wide�celebration�of�architecture�and�architectural�talent�in�
the�capital�during�the�month�of�June�2014.�This�year’s�festival�to�be�launched�at�the�event�will�
explore�the�dynamism�of�the�UK’s�capital�city,�and�its�economic�driver,�through�the�central�
theme:�CAPITAL.�The�concept�of�capital�will�be�as�a�springboard�for�a�broader�look�at�its�
different�manifestations,�from�London’s�role�as�a�cultural�capital,�to�the�ways�in�which�human,�
natural,�social�and�digital�capital�shape�London,�especially�its�architecture�and�its�public�spaces.��
�
As�part�of�the�festival,�the�GLA�Regeneration�Unit�will�host�a�number�of�guided�tours�to�
projects�that�have�received�investment�though�my�Outer�London�and�Regeneration�Funds.�
�
MedCity�
�
I�approved�the�expenditure�of�£150,000�for�activity�related�to�the�interim�delivery�of�MedCity.�
�
Future�involvement�in�the�iCity�project�
�
I�have�confirmed�that�I�am�content�for�the�GLA�to�withdraw�from�the�main�iCity�consortium�and�
to�assume�a�non-funding,�cooperation�project�partner�role�in�the�EU�iCity�project.�
�
I�approved�expenditure�of�up�to�£76,200�on�continued�service�provision�required�from�Citi�
Logik�Limited,�to�enable�the�GLA�to�meet�its�remaining�technical�and�contractual�obligations�
during�the�notice�period�applicable�to�its�withdrawal�from�the�iCity�project�consortium.�
�
�

Housing�and�Land��
�
London�housing�zones�to�create�50,000�new�homes�
�
On�13�June,�alongside�the�Chancellor�of�the�Exchequer,�the�Rt�Hon�George�Osborne�MP,�I�
announced�that�twenty�new�housing�zones�will�be�created�in�London,�delivering�50,000�new�
homes.�I�made�the�announcement�whilst�visiting�a�prospective�new�zone�in�Enfield,�North�
London.�
�

Page 16



 

Housing�zones�are�a�new�approach�being�used�by�the�Government�to�get�new�homes�built�
quickly.�Local�authorities�identify�and�package�together�brownfield�land�which�could�be�used�
for�development�into�a�housing�zone,�remove�all�unnecessary�planning�restrictions�across�it�and�
partner�with�a�developer�to�build�new�homes.�The�absence�of�planning�constraints�in�these�
zones�will�significantly�accelerate�construction.��
��
The�Government�supports�housing�zones�by�making�loans�available�to�local�authorities�for�
necessary�infrastructure�and�other�remedial�work�on�the�site.�Last�November,�my�draft�Housing�
Strategy�set�out�plans�for�ten�potential�housing�zones,�but�this�announcement�now�doubles�
that�number�as�central�government�and�the�GLA�each�offer�£200�million�for�twenty�zones.�
���
To�ensure�that�developments�in�housing�zones�progress�as�quickly�as�possible,�the�Government�
will�grant�me�substantial�powers,�in�the�form�of�Mayoral�Development�Orders,�to�remove�
planning�obstacles.�These�new�zones�are�in�line�with�the�major�shake-up�of�planning�rules�to�
support�house�building�announced�by�the�Chancellor�in�his�Mansion�House�Speech�on�12th�
June.�
���
Housing�Zones�Prospectus�
�
I�agreed�the�Housing�Zone�policy,�with�a�target�to�achieve�20�Housing�Zones�in�London�and�an�
aspiration�to�deliver�up�to�50,000�new�homes�aimed�at�low�to�middle�income�earners�and�
agreed�to�the�publication�of�the�the�Draft�Prospectus�for�Housing�Zones.�
�
I�noted�that�that�funding�of�up�to�£400�million�will�be�made�available�to�support�this�
programme,�comprising�£200�million�allocated�from�the�GLA’s�housing�capital�programme�and�
a�further�£200�million�from�HM�Government,�which�is�in�the�form�of�a�repayable�investment.�
�
London�Rental�Standard�-�GLA�Licensing�Accreditation�Providers��
�
I�have�approved�the�framework�for�the�GLA�to�license�organisations�to�become�Accreditation�
Providers�of�the�London�Rental�Standard�(LRS).�
�
I�have�also�delegated�authority�to�the�Executive�Director�Housing�and�Land,�and�the�Executive�
Director�of�Resources,�after�consulting�with�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Housing,�Land�and�Property�
so�that�they�can:��

�

(i) consider�and�determine�applications�from�organisations�seeking�to�become�
Accreditation�Providers�of�the�LRS,�and�appeals�against�decisions�not�to�grant�such�
a�licence;�
�

(ii) grant�Accreditation-Provider-status�to�successful�applicants�and�execute�the�
attendant�Accreditation�Provider�Agreements�on�behalf�of�the�GLA,�including�the�
licensing�of�the�Accreditation�Provider,�both�to�use�the�London�Rental�Standard�
Badge�(“Badge”)�and�to�sub-licence�the�use�of�the�Badge�by�those�of�its�members,�
who�are�compliant�with�the�London�Rental�Standard;�and�
�

(iii) terminate�any�Accreditation�Provider�Agreement�and�thereby�revoke�the�relevant�
accreditation�provider’s�licence�to�use�the�Badge�and�its�members’�corresponding�
sub-licences,�where�the�Accreditation�Provider�fails�to�comply�with�any�one�or�
more�requirements�of�the�London�Rental�Standard.�

�
�
�

Page 17



 

Offley�Works�
�
I�have�approved�the�variations�to�the�development�agreement�with�Offley�Works�Ltd�&�
Matching�Green�Ltd�and�that�the�sale�of�the�site�can�be�brought�forward.�
�
�

Environment�
�
2014�Low�Carbon�Entrepreneur�Award��
�
On�4�June,�I�was�joined�by�Zac�Goldmsith�MP,�Innocent�Drinks�co-founder�Richard�Reed�and�
my�Environment�Adviser,�Matthew�Pencharz,�to�announce�the�winner�of�the�2014�Low�Carbon�
Entrepreneur�Award.��
�
The�winning�entry,�awarded�a�prize�of�£15,000,�was�for�an�initiative�allowing�the�public�to�
group�together�by�‘crowd�sourcing’�to�buy�and�supply�energy.�Two�students�from�Imperial�
College,�James�Winfield�and�Dominic�Jacobson,�masterminded�the�‘Crowd�Power�Plant’�idea,�
an�online�electricity�marketplace�that�connects�producers�and�consumers�of�electricity.�
�
Runners�up�Kirsty�Kenney�and�Harold�Craston�from�LSE,�took�home�£5,000�for�their�Solarbox�
idea,�which�will�bring�London’s�iconic�telephone�boxes�into�the�21st�Century�by�transforming�
them�into�free�green�mobile�phone�charging�points.�
�
Not�only�was�there�the�opportunity�to�win�the�start-up�funding,�but�students�could�also�win�a�
paid�internship�with�sponsors�Siemens,�giving�an�opportunity�to�gain�valuable�experience�to�
boost�their�career�prospects.�
�
Capital�Clean�up�-�London’s�spring�clean�
�
On�2�June,�I�launched�hundreds�of�local�clean-up�events�to�help�spruce�up�the�capital�for�the�
summer,�with�£50,000�worth�of�grants�and�clean-up�kits�from�the�GLA.�
��
Volunteers�will�be�painting�over�graffiti,�replanting�flowerbeds�and�removing�litter�from�
London’s�streets,�green�spaces,�and�waterways�as�part�of�my�Capital�Clean-up�initiative.�
Resident�and�community�groups,�schools,�and�charities�have�received�clean-up�kits�and�grants�
of�up�to�£1,500�each,�the�largest�in�the�campaign’s�eight�year�history.�I�am�urging�all�
Londoners�to�take�pride�in�their�local�area�and�get�involved.�Last�year�almost�3,000�volunteers�
took�part�in�102�events�across�30�London�boroughs.�Working�in�partnership�with�McDonald’s�
Restaurants�Ltd,�this�year’s�clean-up�has�the�potential�to�be�the�biggest�yet,�helping�to�make�
London�an�even�better�place�to�live,�work�and�invest.�
���
Last�year’s�clean-up�events�covered�an�area�the�size�of�21�Wembley�Stadiums.�The�thousands�
of�volunteers�collected�more�than�2,500�bags�of�rubbish,�removed�91�tonnes�of�fly�tipping,�and�
planted�450�trees.��
�
FoodSave�
�
FoodSave�is�now�well�underway�and�there�are�some�early�positive�results�coming�out�of�the�
project.�FoodSave,�funded�by�the�European�Regional�Development�Fund,�London�Waste�and�
Recycling�Board�and�the�GLA,�is�working�with�SME�food�businesses�across�London�to�reduce�
their�food�waste,�divert�surplus�food�to�good�purposes�and�better�manage�unavoidable�food�
waste.��

Page 18



 

�
To�date,�18�businesses�have�completed�their�support,�and�many�more�are�currently�being�
supported�by�the�project.�The�first�18�restaurants,�hotels�and�pubs�that�FoodSave�has�worked�
with�have�experienced�an�average�food�waste�reduction�of�over�1.5�tonnes�per�year�(equivalent�
to�two�dozen�180�litre�bins.)�and�savings�of�over�£6,000�per�year,�much�higher�than�originally�
predicted.��
�
FoodSave�will�support�240�of�London’s�food�SMEs�by�March�2015,�helping�to�address�the�
significant�issue�of�business�food�waste.��
�
Street�Tree�Initiative�
�
At�the�end�of�May,�applications�opened�for�round�three�of�my�Street�Tree�Initiative.�The�
deadline�for�applications�is�noon�on�Friday�29�August�2014�for�planting�over�the�winter�of�
2014/15.�
�
This�initiative�is�open�to�all�London�boroughs�and�other�organisations�that�own�or�manage�
public�realm.�Applications�are�also�open�for�my�RE:LEAF�Community�Grant�Scheme�which�
supports�projects�that�promote�or�protect�trees�and�woodlands�and�engage�local�communities.��
�
My�Street�Tree�Initiative�has�planted�over�4,300�new�street�trees�across�23�boroughs�over�the�
past�year.�When�added�to�the�previous�round,�we’ve�planted�over�6,300�street�trees�since�
2012.�I�am�aiming�to�plant�around�4,000�more�street�trees�planted�before�March�2015�in�order�
to�meet�my�10,000�tree�target.�
�
�

Social�Inclusion�and�Health�
�
London�Health�Commission�
�
On�3�June,�I�met�with�Simon�Stevens,�the�recently�appointed�chief�executive�of�NHS�England�
and�Lord�Darzi�to�discuss�health�in�London.�On�5�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�
also�met�with�Lord�Darzi�to�discuss�the�London�Health�Commission�(LHC).��On�11�June,�
Victoria�also�attended�the�LHC�meeting�hosted�by�the�Kings�Fund.�Speakers�included�Lord�
Darzi,�the�Rt�Hon�Stephen�Dorrell�MP�and�Linda�Gibbs,�former�Deputy�Mayor�for�Health,�New�
York�City.�On�12�June,�I�met�with�both�Lord�Darzi�and�the�Rt�Hon�Jeremy�Hunt,�Secretary�of�
State�for�Health.��
�
Healthy�Schools�London�
�
On�9�June,�I�welcomed�over�200�guests�to�celebrate�London’s�schools�achievements�as�part�of�
the�Healthy�Schools�London�programme.�Over�1000�schools�have�now�signed�up�to�be�part�of�
the�programme.�I�introduced�the�event,�which�started�with�a�performance�of�The�Big�Dance�by�
Ravenstone�Primary�School,�Wandsworth.�My�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�chaired�the�
event,�where�a�series�of�high�profile�speakers�talked�about�the�benefits�of�Healthy�Schools�
London.�
�
Ambassador�of�Cape�Verde�
�
On�2�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�hosted�the�Ambassador�of�the�Republic�of�
Cape�Verde,�Mrs�Maria�de�Jesus�Veiga�Miranda�Mascarentas,�to�City�Hall.�The�newly�appointed�
Ambassador�is�keen�to�build�upon�external�relations�with�major�cities�across�Europe.�Mrs�

Page 19



 

Fernanda�Fernandes,�Minister�for�Cape-Verdean�Communities,�was�also�in�attendance�at�the�
meeting.�
�
Visit�to�London�Ambulance�Service�
�
On�2�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�visited�the�Headquarters�of�the�London�
Ambulance�Service�in�Waterloo�and�spent�time�looking�at�the�work�of�their�Intelligent�
Conveyance�Unit�which�aims�to�reduce�patient�transport�times.�
�
The�King’s�Fund�NHS�and�Social�Care�Conference���
�
On�3�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�attended�the�King’s�Fund�Conference�at�
Cavendish�Square�entitled�‘The�NHS�and�Social�Care:�Close�to�the�edge?’�
�
Household�Division�Beating�Retreat�
�
On�11�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�attended�the�Household�Division�Beating�
Retreat�and�a�subsequent�Reception�at�Horse�Guards�Parade.�
�
Latin�American�Reception�and�Photographic�Exhibition�
�
On�16�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�attended�and�spoke�at�the�Latin�American�
Reception�and�Photographic�Exhibition�held�at�City�Hall.����
�
�

Education�and�Youth�
�
Education�and�Youth�reception�

�
On�9�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor�for�Education�and�Culture,�Munira�Mirza,�hosted�a�major�
Education�and�Youth�Community�Reception�at�City�Hall.�This�was�part�of�my�programme�of�
regular�events�to�engage�with�Londoners.�
�
250�guests�attended�from�education�and�youth�organisations,�boroughs,�policy�makers�and�
academia,�alongside�schools�funded�under�the�London�Schools�Excellence�Fund�and�members�
of�the�London�Schools�Gold�Club.�Munira�thanked�them�for�their�support,�set�out�the�work�we�
are�currently�doing�in�the�GLA�and�sought�to�explore�any�opportunities�for�further�
collaborations�and�partnerships.�
�
Other�speakers�were�Daniel�Snell,�Founder�of�Arrival�Education,�and�two�inspirational�young�
people�on�their�‘Success�for�Life’�programme,�L’marr�Ffrench�(19)�and�Eunice�Peters�(year�11,�
Edenham�High�School).�This�high�impact�programme�is�proven�to�create�dramatic�turnarounds�
to�the�direction�of�a�young�person’s�life.�It�is�benefiting�from�GLA�ESF�funding�matched�by�
schools�and�corporates.��
�
Mark�Hartley,�Headteacher�of�Barnes�Primary�School,�also�spoke�as�one�of�the�first�Gold�Club�
schools�to�present�his�exceptional�practice�in�the�Gold�Club’s�seminar�programme.�He�strongly�
endorsed�the�school-to-school�support�underpinning�my�Gold�Club�scheme,�to�which�his�
school’s�exceptional�results�for�all�its�pupils�qualify�it�to�be�a�member�in�both�2013�and�2014.�
�
�

Page 20



 

Bloomberg�Philanthropies�Ideas�Camp�
�
On�12�and�13�June,�the�Head�of�Paid�Service,�Jeff�Jacobs,�led�a�small�team�at�the�Bloomberg�
Philanthropies�Ideas�Camp�in�Berlin.��Cities�all�across�Europe�have�submitted�bids�for�the�
Mayors�Challenge�initiated�in�the�USA�by�the�then�Mayor�of�New�York.�My�London�bid,�Digital�
City�Health,�designed�to�help�improve�the�lives�of�people�suffering�from�diabetes�and�obesity,�
was�selected�as�one�of�the�21�finalists�out�of�155�cities�which�entered�the�competition.�Ideas�
Camp�brought�the�finalists�together�to�work�on�their�bids�and�exchange�ideas.�We�will�now�be�
preparing�our�final�submission�in�July.����
�
�

Olympic�and�Paralympic�Legacy�and�Sport�
�
First�homes�at�Chobham�Manor�go�on�sale��
�
On�30�May,�the�first�homes�went�on�sale�at�Chobham�Manor,�the�first�new�neighbourhood�to�
be�built�on�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park,�and�48�homes�were�reserved�during�the�launch�
weekend�alone.�Chobham�Manor�will�provide�up�to�850�homes,�of�which�28�per�cent�will�be�
affordable�housing�and�75�per�cent�will�be�family�housing.�The�homes�will�be�built�to�the�latest�
standards�of�sustainability,�incorporate�high�quality�design�and�have�world-class�venues�right�
on�the�doorstep.��
�
Commonwealth�Games�Queen's�Baton�Relay�
�
On�6�June,�I�was�joined�by�Olympic,�World�and�Commonwealth�Champion,�Christine�Ohuruogu�
MBE�and�local�schoolchildren,�to�welcome�the�Commonwealth�Games�Queen's�Baton�Relay�to�
the�capital,�part�of�the�England�leg�of�a�journey�that�will�see�it�travel�190,000�kilometres�over�
288�days.�
��
The�Baton,�which�visits�70�Commonwealth�nations�and�toured�Northern�Ireland�and�Wales,�is�
going�to�16�further�locations�en�route�to�its�final�journey�through�Scotland�and�the�start�of�the�
Glasgow�2014�Commonwealth�Games.�It�was�carried�across�London�by�twelve�Londoners,�who�
were�nominated�for�their�contributions�to�their�communities�in�coaching,�education,�
community�sports�initiatives�and�youth�politics.��
�
On�8�June,�the�Queen’s�Baton�made�its�way�through�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�as�part�of�
the�run�up�to�Games.�As�part�of�the�celebration,�the�Legacy�Corporation�put�on�a�Festival�of�
Sport,�a�flagship�event�for�'Active�People,�Active�Park'�(APAP).�APAP�is�a�three�year�
programme�run�by�the�Legacy�Corporation�to�offer�local�residents�of�all�ages�and�abilities�
opportunities�to�get�active,�with�over�30�different�sports�on�offer.���
�
Transfer�of�the�Cofely�Concession�Agreement�from�the�ODA�to�the�LLDC�
�
I�agreed�to�the�decision�of�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation’s�Board�to�approve�
the�statutory�transfer�of�the�Cofely�Concession�Agreement,�including�all�variations,�from�the�
ODA�to�the�LLDC,�under�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�and�Olympic�Delivery�
Authority�Transfer�Scheme�(4)�2014.�
�
I�also�noted�that�the�Legacy�Corporation�has�entered�into�an�agreement�with�the�ODA�to�
accede�to�an�agreement�between�the�ODA�and�Stratford�City�Development�Limited�(SCDL),�
and�Cofely�East�London�Energy�Limited�(“Cofely”)�for�the�maintenance,�metering�and�billing�

Page 21



 

for�secondary�energy�networks�within�development�sites�on�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park,�
which�is�a�variation�to�the�existing�Concession�Agreement�between�the�ODA�with�Cofely.�
�
�

Culture�and�Events�
�
First�London�Music�Awards�
�
On�11�June,�I�attended�the�inaugural�London�Music�Awards�which�took�place�at�the�
Roundhouse�in�Camden.��
�
A�host�of�stars�and�music�industry�insiders�attended�the�event�which�was�organised�to�raise�
money�for�the�Mayor's�Music�Fund.�In�just�two�years,�the�charity�has�given�out�grants�worth�
£1.3�million,�benefitting�over�14,000�young�musicians.�
�
Jazzie�B,�founder�of�chart�topping�dance�music�pioneers�Soul�II�Soul,�received�the�London�
Legend�accolade.�Sir�Antonio�Pappano,�Musical�Director�of�the�Royal�Opera�and�The�Orchestra�
of�the�Academia�Nazionale�di�Santa�Cecilia,�was�recognised�in�the�Exceptional�Contribution�to�
Music�category,�and�Lord�Lloyd�Webber�was�awarded�in�the�Individual�Philanthropy�category.�
��
London's�eclectic�music�scene�was�reflected�in�the�diversity�of�the�award�winners.�26�year�old�
Kimberly�Anne�from�Bromley�won�Young�Composer�/�Songwriter.�Lewisham-based�Femme,�24,�
took�the�Rising�Star�award�and�Undiscovered�Talent�went�to�15�year�old�Natalie�Shay.��
����
Busking�Taskforce�
�
On�29�May,�my�Deputy�Mayor�for�Education�and�Culture,�Munira�Mirza,�chaired�the�first�
meeting�of�my�Busking�Taskforce.�The�group�will�work�with�my�Culture�Team�to�make�London�
the�most�busker�friendly�city�in�the�world.�London�is�becoming�a�no-go�area�for�buskers�due�to�
myriad�rules�and�regulations�and�the�lack�of�a�coherent,�pan-London�approach.�The�Taskforce�
will�be�developing�a�busking�code�for�London,�agreed�by�all�the�key�agencies,�and�looking�at�
how�we�can�bring�great�busking�talent�back�to�London�and�engage�new�audiences.��
�
The�Taskforce�includes�TfL,�MPS,�Musicians�Union,�Local�Authorities,�Business�Improvement�
Districts,�Network�Rail,�Westfield�and�musicians�and�buskers,�including�former�frontman�of�The�
Stranglers,�Hugh�Cornwell.�
��
London�Cultural�Strategy�Group�
�
On�5�June,�I�met�with�my�London�Cultural�Strategy�Group�at�City�Hall.�London’s�cultural�scene�
and�creative�economy�is�thriving,�which�is�not�just�good�for�jobs�and�growth�but�contributes�to�
our�sense�of�identity�and�well-being.�The�Group�advises�me�on�the�direction�and�shape�of�my�
Culture�Strategy�and�the�meeting�is�used�to�discuss�the�big�issues�facing�London’s�creative�and�
cultural�industries.���
�
Global�cities�don’t�stand�still�and�we�are�working�to�ensure�that�London�strengthens�its�position�
as�the�world’s�creative�and�cultural�powerhouse.�We�are�also�alert�to�the�challenge�of�providing�
young�Londoners�with�the�skills�they�need�to�access�a�growing�number�of�creative�and�cultural�
jobs.�At�the�meeting�we�discussed�embedding�culture�in�new�building�developments,�
maintaining�London’s�attractiveness�to�creative�businesses�and�talented�artists,�as�well�as�the�
role�of�culture�in�major�events�such�as�our�bid�to�host�the�Expo�in�2025.�
�

Page 22



 

Hello�Indonesia�
�
On�31�May,�Hello�Indonesia�took�place�at�Trafalgar�Square�to�celebrate�Indonesian�culture.�
Over�15,000�people�enjoyed�traditional�performances�from�Balinese�dancers,�Javanese�Gamelan�
and�talented�musicians�on�the�main�stage.�In�addition,�there�was�also�the�opportunity�to�
sample�the�very�best�of�Indonesian�cuisine,�with�an�array�of�gastronomic�delights�cooked�by�
native�celebrity�chefs.�
�
Turkish�Day��
�
On�1�June,�I�hosted�Turkish�Day�at�Trafalgar�Square,�where�around�25,000�people�took�part�in�
a�spectacular�celebration�of�Turkish�culture.�Offering�delicious�traditional�Turkish�food,�music�
and�dance,�the�event�also�provided�an�opportunity�to�pay�respect�towards�the�victims�of�the�
mining�incident�in�Turkey�with�a�minute’s�silence.��
�
Brazil�Day��
�
On�12�June,�to�celebrate�the�start�of�the�2014�FIFA�World�Cup,�Londoners�and�visitors�were�
invited�to�come�down�to�Trafalgar�Square�dressed�in�the�Brazilian�colours�of�yellow,�blue�and�
green�for�a�sizzling,�samba�party�in�London.�My�Deputy�Mayor�for�Culture�and�Education�
Munira�Mirza�attended�and�met�with�the�Brazilian�Ambassador.�The�event�offered�live�music,�
delicious�food�and�a�fantastic�carnival�atmosphere.���
�
Biggin�Hill�Festival�of�Flight�
�
On�14�June,�my�Deputy�Mayor,�Victoria�Borwick,�attended�the�Biggin�Hill�Festival�of�Flight�at�
Biggin�Hill�Airport�in�Bromley.�Victoria�spoke�briefly�at�a�special�presentation�for�the�Red�
Arrows�team�whilst�at�the�Festival.�
�

 

Volunteering 

�
Drive�to�help�young�people’s�job�prospects�through�volunteering�
�
On�3�June,�I�revealed�that�young�Londoners�are�being�offered�the�opportunity�to�gain�valuable�
experience�and�increase�their�future�employability�as�a�result�of�two�new�volunteering�schemes�
I�launched�to�coincide�with�National�Volunteers’�Week�(1�–�7�June).�
�
Team�London�has�teamed�up�with�youth�and�community�charity�The�Challenge�to�launch�
HeadStart�London,�a�programme�designed�for�16�–�18�year�olds�who�are�still�in�full-time�
education.�They�are�encouraged�to�commit�to�16�hours�volunteering�in�their�local�area�as�a�
means�of�gaining�valuable�experience�to�prepare�them�for�employment.�
�
In�addition�to�volunteering,�HeadStart�London�will�offer�employability�workshops�including�
interview�and�assessment�preparation,�communications�coaching�and�a�guaranteed�interview.�
Over�the�next�three�years�the�programme�will�work�with�around�5,000�youngsters�giving�them�
valuable�experience�to�put�on�their�CVs,�while�communities�across�the�capital�will�benefit�from�
over�60,000�hours�of�support.�
�
A�second�scheme�will�see�Team�London�partnering�with�youth�charities�City�Gateway�and�
Inspire!�to�support�unemployed�Londoners�aged�16�and�over�to�apply�for�customer-facing�
volunteering�positions�of�their�choice�at�sporting�and�cultural�events�across�the�capital.�The�

Page 23



 

Team�London�Volunteers�project�which�is�part�funded�by�the�European�Social�Fund�(ESF),�will�
provide�training�for�young�people�who�may�not�have�prior�experience�of�working�with�the�
public.�In�addition�to�workshops�aimed�at�improving�their�communication,�motivation�and�
confidence,�they�will�be�supported�to�seek�sustained�employment�or�education�and�training�
opportunities�that�build�on�their�volunteering�experience.�
�
On�3�June,�I�hosted�an�event�in�City�Hall�to�mark�the�30thanniversary�of�National�Volunteers’�
Week�and�to�launch�the�HeadStart�London�scheme.��
�
�

GLA�Organisation�
�
Direction�to�LFEPA�–�8�Albert�Embankment�
�
I�have�directed�LFEPA:�
�

• Not�to�proceed�or�take�any�preparatory�steps�in�relation�to�the�disposal�of�8�Albert�
Embankment,�except�for�and�pending�completion�of�the�actions�set�out�below:�

• To�write�to�all�members�of�the�London�Development�Panel,�no�later�than�31�July�2014,�
inviting�them�to�provide�informal�advice�and�input�on�issues�relating�to�the�
development�and�its�viability,�by�way�of�soft�market�testing;�and�

• Within�eight�weeks�of�the�receipt�of�the�information�from�the�soft�market�test,�to�
report�back�to�me�on�the�conclusions�reached�as�a�result�of�that�test�and�to�await�my�
response�before�taking�any�action�in�relation�to�the�disposal�of�8�Albert�Embankment.�

�
�

Planning�and�Development�Control�
�
Approval�of�Westfield�expansion�
�
On�30�May,�I�approved�plans�to�extend�the�Westfield�Shopping�Centre�in�Shepherds�Bush�and�
build�more�than�1,300�homes.�
�
The�£1�billion�scheme�will�be�anchored�by�a�John�Lewis�department�store,�the�first�in�West�
London.�The�development�will�also�include�restaurants�and�cafes,�office�space,�a�children’s�play�
space�and�a�new�leisure�complex.�It�is�expected�that�the�expansion�will�create�around�6,700�
permanent�new�jobs.�
�
Developer,�Westfield�Shoppingtowns�Ltd�will�build�1,347�new�homes.�162�of�these�homes�will�
be�affordable�homes,�40�per�cent�of�which�will�be�social�rented.This�number�could�increase�
subject�to�viability�assessments.�
�
The�230,000�sq�ft�John�Lewis�store�will�operate�over�four�floors,�creating�approximately�600�
new�jobs.�
�
The�development�sits�within�the�White�City�Opportunity�Area,�which�seeks�to�build�on�White�
City’s�heritage�in�creative,�media�and�entertainment�industries.�Other�elements�include�the�
redevelopment�of�the�former�BBC�Television�Centre�in�Wood�Lane�and�a�new�campus�for�
Imperial�College,�Imperial�West.�In�total,�there�is�capacity�for�5,000�homes�and�10,000�jobs.�
�
�

Page 24



 

Planning�Decisions�(Stage�II�referrals)�
�

Building�63Riverside�Way,�LB�Hillingdon�
I�have�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Hillingdon�stating�that�I�am�content�to�allow�the�
Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Land�North�of�Westfield�Shopping�Centre,�LB�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�
I�have�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�stating�that�I�am�content�
to�allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
102-124�Station�Road,�LB�Barnet�
I�have�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Barnet�stating�that�I�am�content�to�allow�the�Council�
to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Delegated�stage�II�decisions�
�
The�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policy�and�Planning,�under�powers�I�delegated�to�him,�has�sent�letters�in�
response�to�the�following�statutory�referrals:�
�
Former�Job�Centre�Plus,�LB�Tower�Hamlets�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Tower�Hamlets�stating�that�he�is�
content�to�allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Newfoundland,�LB�Tower�Hamlets�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Tower�Hamlets�stating�that�he�is�
content�to�allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Land�North�West�of�Westfield�Shopping�Centre,�LB�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�stating�
that�he�is�content�to�allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Costco�Warehouse�30�Second�Way,�LB�Brent�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�London�Borough�of�Brent�stating�that�he�is�content�to�
allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
One�Woolwich,�Connaught�Estate�,�RB�Greenwich�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�Royal�Borough�of�Greenwich�stating�that�he�is�content�to�
allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
One�Woolwich,�Maryon�Road�and�Grove�Estate,�RB�Greenwich�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�Royal�Borough�of�Greenwich�stating�that�he�is�content�to�
allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
One�Woolwich,Morris�Walk�North�and�Morris�Walk�South,�RB�Greenwich�
The�Deputy�Mayor�has�written�to�the�Royal�Borough�of�Greenwich�stating�that�he�is�content�to�
allow�the�Council�to�determine�the�application�itself.�
�
Planning�Decisions�(Stage�I�referrals)�
�
I�have�asked�officers�to�send�letters�giving�comments�about�the�following�stage�one�referrals:�
�

• Gallions�Quarter,�LB�Newham�

Page 25



 

• Teddington�Studios,�LB�Richmond�upon�Thames�

• Packington�Estate,�LB�Islington�

• 1�Lambeth�High�Street,�LB�Lambeth�

• 101�George�Street,�LB�Croydon�

• Land�at�Croydon�College,�LB�Croydon�
�
Decisions�made�under�delegation�to�Assistant�Director�-�Planning��
�

• Plot�2,�London�Sustainable�Industries�Park,�LB�Barking�and�Dagenham�

• Land�at�2-12�Stratford�High�Street,�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�

• Lancaster�Green�Silchester�Road,�RB�Kensington�and�Chelsea�

• Alpine�House�Honeypot�Lane,�LB�Brent�

• Surrey�Docks�Stadium�Site,�LB�Southwark�

• Queensborough�House�Albert�Embankment,�LB�Lambeth�

• Cannon�Wharf�Business�Centre,�LB�Lewisham�

• Kings�Reach�Tower,�LB�Southwark�

• Holborn�Gate,�City�of�London�
�

�

Key�Engagements�
�
Among�my�additional�engagements�since�my�last�report�were�the�following:��

�

• I�opened�the�new�helipad�at�St�George's�Hospital,�Tooting�on�29�May�

• I�held�my�regular�“Ask�Boris”�Twitter�session�on�29�May�

• I�attended�Bureau�of�Leaders�on�29�May�

• I�chaired�my�regular�planning�decisions�meeting�29�May�

• I�had�drinks�with�the�US�Ambassador�Matthew�Barzun�and�Brooke�Barzun�on�30�May�

• I�addressed�the�Gangs�Summit�taking�place�at�City�Hall�on�2�June�

• I�had�my�photograph�taken�with�members�of�the�Bethnal�Green�Disaster�committee�on�
2�June�to�mark�the�£10,000�contribution�Transport�for�London�has�given�towards�their�
commemoration�

• I�attended�the�Beanstalk�Ball�on�2�June��

• I�attended�the�launch�of�Team�London’s�Headstart�London�programme�on�3�June�

• I�chaired�the�Transport�for�London�Remuneration�Committee�on�3�June�

• I�met�with�Dame�Ruth�Carnall,�Lord�Darzi�and�Simon�Stevens�on�3�June�to�discuss�the�
London�Health�Commission�

• I�met�with�Martin�Roth,�Director�of�the�V&A,�and�Sir�Paul�Ruddock,�Chair�of�the�V&A,�
on�3�June�to�discuss�the�Olympic�Park�

• I�had�my�regular�meeting�with�Transport�for�London�on�3�June��

• I�met�with�Lord�Davies,�Chair�of�the�Garden�Bridge�Trust,�on�3�June�to�discuss�the�
Garden�Bridge�Project�

• I�attended�the�Air�Ambulance�Reception�at�City�Hall�on�3�June�

• I�hosted�my�regular�monthly�“Ask�Boris”�Phone�in�with�Nick�Ferrari�on�4�June�

• I�attend�the�Henderson�Investment�2020�Apprenticeship�Scheme�Lunch�on�4�June�

• I�attended�the�Low�Carbon�Entrepreneur�2014�Awards�Ceremony�on�4�June�

• I�attended�the�opening�of�the�Lod�Mosaic�exhibition�at�Waddesdon�Manor�on�5�June�

• I�attended�a�meeting�of�the�London�Cultural�Strategy�Group�on�5�June��

Page 26



 

• I�met�with�Michael�Arthur�and�Steve�Caddick,�UCL,�on�5�June�to�discuss�the�
Olympicopolis�project�

• I�met�with�AC�Cressida�Dick�on�5�June�to�discuss�policing�and�security�

• I�welcomed�the�Commonwealth�Games�Queen’s�Baton�Relay�to�City�Hall�on�6�June��

• I�attended�the�Healthy�Schools�London�Celebration�event�at�City�Hall�on�9�June�

• I�chaired�the�London�Crime�Reduction�Board�Meeting�on�9�June��

• I�had�my�regular�discussion�on�Policing�in�London�with�Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe,�the�
Metropolitan�Police�Commissioner,�on�9�June��

• I�attended�the�official�opening�of�London�Fire�Brigade’s�new�multi-million�pound�
training�centre�in�Beckton�on�9�June�

• I�attended�a�fundraiser�for�the�Mayor’s�Fund�for�London�at�Tower�42,�alongside�former�
Mayor�of�New�York,�Rudy�Giuliani,�on�10�June��

• I�had�my�regular�meeting�with�Transport�for�London�on�10�June�

• I�addressed�the�London�Real�Estate�Forum�Reception�on�10�June��

• I�attended�Mayor's�Question�Time�on�11�June��

• I�chaired�my�regular�planning�decisions�meeting�on�11�June�

• I�attended�the�Mayor’s�Music�Fund�inaugural�London�Music�Awards�on�11�June��

• I�had�my�regular�meeting�with�representatives�of�the�Taxi�Trade�on�12�June��

• I�met�with�Antony�Jenkins,�Group�Chief�Executive,�Barclays�PLC,�on�12�June�to�discuss�
the�London�economy�and�investing�in�London��

• I�met�with�the�Rt�Hon�Jeremy�Hunt,�Secretary�of�State�for�Health,�and�Lord�Darzi,�on�
12�June�to�discuss�the�London�Health�Commission�

• I�visited�Meridian�Water,�a�large�regeneration�project�in�Enfield,�on�13�June,�along�with�
the�Chancellor�of�the�Exchequer,�the�Rt�Hon�George�Osborne�MP,�to�formally�launch�
the�prospectus�for�the�Housing�Zones�programme�

• I�had�lunch�at�Chequers�on�15�June�

• I�attended�the�Bloomberg�Tech�Summit�and�launched�London�Tech�week�at�Central�
Working�in�Shoreditch�on�16�June�

• I�had�lunch�with�the�Rt�Hon�Sajid�Javid�MP,�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Culture,�Media�&�
Sport,�on�16�June�

• I�had�my�regular�meeting�with�the�London�Business�Advisory�Council�on�16�June�

• I�chaired�my�regular�planning�decision�meeting�on�17�June�

• I�had�my�regular�meeting�with�Transport�for�London�on�18�June�

• I�attended�an�aviation�summit�at�Stratford�on�18�June��
�

Ends�
�

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



� � � � � � � � � �

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Mayor’s�Report�to�the�Assembly� �
�
Background�Document�–�List�of�decisions�between�29�May�2014�and�18�June�2014�
�
The�Part�1�of�Mayoral�Decisions�(from�6�April�2009),�Executive�Director�Decisions�(from�1�November�2010),�Assistant�Director�Decisions�(from�18�April�
2013)�and�the�non-confidential�facts�and�advice�supporting�those�decisions,�are�published�on�the�GLA�website�within�one�working�day�of�approval,�unless�
deferred.��
*�=�previously�deferred�publication.�
Ref� Decision� Date� Approved�by/�

Mayoral�
Advisor�

Financial�Implications�
�

MD1370� Approved:�
�
1.�The�disposal�of�Units�3�and�4�of�the�final�remaining�units�(at�
Wildspace,�6-10�Lamson�Road,�Rainham)�to�the�identified�purchaser�
on�the�terms�set�out�in�the�Part�2�confidential�section�of�the�decision�
form.�
�
Part�2�of�this�report�is�confidential�under�the�FOI�Act�
�

18/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Richard�Blakeway�

The�finance�comments�are�included�
in�Part�2�confidential�section�of�this�
MD.�
�

MD1368� Approved:�
�
1.�To�direct�TfL�under�sections�155�and�174�of�the�Greater�London�
Authority�Act�1999�to�provide�550�Oyster�cards�to�enable�the�Team�
London�volunteers�and�managers�to�travel�on�the�TfL�Network�and�
National�Rail�(where�the�Train�Operating�Companies�accept�Oyster)�
to�their�training�day�and�volunteering�at�assigned�venues�during�the�
period�of�1�July�to�31�August.�
�
2.�To�delegate�to�TfL�the�necessary�powers�to�deliver�the�proposals�
specified�in�the�Direction�under�sections�30,�34�and�38�of�that�Act;�
and��
�
3.�The�GLA�providing�a�revenue�grant�of�up�to�£7,730�to�TfL�
pursuant�to�section�121�of�the�GLA�Act�to�reimburse�TfL�for�the�cost�
of�National�Rail�journeys�taken�using�the�Team�London�Oyster�cards.�

18/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Veronica�Wadley�

The�total�maximum�estimated�cost�
of�this�decision�is�estimated�to�be�
£36,810,�of�which�£29,080�is�the�
estimated�amount�that�TfL�will�
forgo�in�revenue�by�providing�the�
550�Oyster�cards.�The�balance�of�
£7,730�equates�to�the�proposed�
GLA�reimbursement�to�TfL�for�the�
costs�of�the�National�Rail�journeys�
made�using�the�Team�London�
Oyster�cards.�It�should�be�noted�
that�final�costs�will�be�dependent�
upon�the�actual�number�of�journeys�
that�the�volunteers�take�during�the�
free�travel�period.�
�

P
age 29



� � � � � � � � � �

� The�GLA’s�reimbursement�to�TfL�of�
£7,730�as�detailed�above�will�be�
funded�from�the�Team�London�
Programme�budget�for�2014-15�as�
approved�by�MD1341.�
�

MD1366� Agreed:�
�
1.�The�Housing�Zone�policy�as�set�out�in�the�decision�form�with�a�
target�to�achieve�20�Housing�Zones�in�London�with�an�aspiration�to�
deliver�up�to�50,000�new�homes�aimed�at�low�to�middle�income�
earners.�
�
2.�The�Draft�Prospectus�for�Housing�Zones�for�publication,�attached�
as�Appendix�1�to�the�decision�form.�
�
Noted:�
�
3.�That�funding�of�up�to�£400�million�will�be�made�available�to�
support�this�programme,�comprising�£200m�allocated�from�the�GLA’s�
housing�capital�programme�and�a�further�£200m�from�HM�
Government.�
�
4.�That�the�£200m�contribution�from�HMG�is�in�the�form�of�a�
repayable�investment.�
�

12/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Richard�Blakeway�

DCLG�wrote�to�the�GLA�on�11�
December�2013�confirming�the�
provision�of�an�additional�£1.07bn�
of�capital�grant�to�deliver�32,000�
affordable�homes�in�the�2015-18�
period.�
�
Applications�for�funding�from�
providers�of�affordable�housing�for�
the�2015-18�period�are�currently�
being�assessed�by�officers�in�
Housing�and�Land�who�consider�
that�allocating�£200m�into�a�new�
Housing�Zone�initiative�will�assist�
with�the�delivery�of�the�GLA’s�
affordable�housing�targets.�
�
Central�Government�is�proposing�to�
provide�an�additional�£200m�of�
repayable�funding.�
�

MD1360� Approved:�
�
1.�To�make,�for�the�purposes�of�housing�and�regeneration�and�for�
the�reasons�set�out�in�this�report,�a�Compulsory�Purchase�Order�
(CPO)�under�section�333ZA(1)�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�
1999�to�acquire�any�outstanding�property�interests�in�the�land�and�
any�new�rights�over�the�land�as�may�be�necessary�to�achieve�the�
redevelopment�and�regeneration�of�the�Southall�Gas�Works�site.�
�
�

17/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Richard�Blakeway�

Any�costs�to�the�GLA,�including�
internal�staff�costs,�which�relate�to�
making�the�CPO�necessary�to���
deliver�the�project�will�be�paid�by�or�
recovered�in�arrears�from�St�James�
West�London�Limited,�with�a�parent�
company�guarantee�from�St�James�
Group�Limited.�
�

P
age 30



� � � � � � � � � �

2.�To�cover�the�costs,�as�necessary,�of�preparing�the�CPO,�subject�to�
reimbursement�of�such�costs�pursuant�to�the�indemnity�provided�in�
the�Promotion�Agreement.�
�
3.�To�take�all�necessary�steps�to�secure�the�making,�confirmation�and�
implementation�of�the�CPO,�including�the�publication�and�service�of�
all�relevant�notices�and�the�presentation�of�the�GLA’s�case�at�any�
public�inquiry.�
�
4.�To�take�any�and�all�necessary�steps,�including�approving�terms�for�
the�acquisition�of�legal�interests�(including�new�rights)�by�agreement�
for�the�purposes�of�resolving�any�objections�to�the�CPO.�
�
Part�2�of�this�report�is�confidential�under�the�FOI�Act�
�

MD1359� Approved:�
�
1.�To�direct�LFEPA�in�the�manner�attached�as�Appendix�3�to�the�
decision�form,�namely:�

• Not�to�proceed�to,�or�take�any�preparatory�steps�in�relation�to,�
the�disposal�of�8�Albert�Embankment�except�for�and�pending�
completion�of�the�actions�set�out�below;�

• To�write�to�all�members�of�the�London�Development�Panel,�no�
later�than�31�July�2014,�inviting�them�to�provide�informal�advice�
and�input�on�issues�relating�to�the�development�and�its�viability,�
by�way�of�soft�market�testing;�and�

• Within�eight�weeks�of�the�receipt�of�the�information�from�the�
soft�market�test,�to�report�back�to�the�Mayor�of�London�on�the�
conclusions�reached�as�a�result�of�that�test�and�to�await�the�
Mayor�of�London’s�response�before�taking�any�action�in�relation�
to�the�disposal�of�8�Albert�Embankment.�

�

16/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Sir�Edward�Lister�

There�are�no�financial�issues�
directly�arising�for�the�GLA�from�
this�decision.�

MD1354� Approved:�
�
1.�Proposals�for�consultation�to�establish�a�Mayoral�Development�
Corporation�(MDC)�–�the�Old�Oak�and�Park�Royal�Mayoral�
Development�Corporation�–�at�Old�Oak�and�Park�Royal�and�

18/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Sir�Edward�Lister�

The�direct�costs�to�the�GLA�of�
carrying�out�the�consultation,�other�
than�the�necessary�staff�time,�will�
be�minimal,�with�any�costs�to�be�
met�by�Old�Oak�and�Park�Royal�

P
age 31



� � � � � � � � � �

surrounding�areas,�to�become�operational�on�1�April�2015.�
�
2.�Publication�of�a�consultation�document�which�sets�out�the�
Mayor’s�proposals�to�establish�a�Mayoral�Development�Corporation�
(MDC)�at�Old�Oak�and�Park�Royal,�as�set�out�in�the�Consultation�
Document�attached�to�the�decision�form�as�Appendices�1�and�2,�
upon�which�he�wishes�to�consult�applicable�persons�identified�in�
relevant�legislation,�Londoners�and�key�stakeholders�in�accordance�
with�section�197�of�the�Localism�Act�2011.�
�

MDC/Planning�2014-15�budget�of�
£275,000.�

MD1352*� Agreed:�
�
1.�The�decision�of�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation’s�
Board�to�approve�the�statutory�transfer�of�the�Cofely�Concession�
Agreement,�including�all�variations,�from�the�Olympic�Delivery�
Authority�to�the�LLDC,�under�the�London�Legacy�Development�
Corporation�and�Olympic�Delivery�Authority�Transfer�Scheme�(4)�
2014.�
�
Noted�
�
2.�That�the�Legacy�Corporation�has�entered�into�an�agreement�with�
the�ODA�to�accede�to�an�agreement�between�the�ODA�and�Stratford�
City�Development�Limited�(SCDL),�and�Cofely�East�London�Energy�
Limited�for�the�maintenance,�metering�and�billing�for�secondary�
energy�networks�within�development�sites�on�Queen�Elizabeth�
Olympic�Park�(QEOP),�which�is�a�variation�to�the�existing�Concession�
Agreement�between�the�ODA�with�Cofely.�
�
Part�2�of�this�report�is�confidential�under�the�FOI�Act�
�

30/05/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Neale�Coleman�

As�the�LLDC’s�principal�grant�
funder�any�financial�impact�and�
risks�arising�from�this�decision�are�
directly�relevant�to�the�GLA.��
�
These�are�set�out�in�Part�2�
confidential�section�of�this�
decision.�

MD1347� Approved:�
�
1.�That�the�GLA�withdraw�from�the�main�iCity�consortium�and�to�
assume�a�non-funding,�cooperation�project�partner�role�in�the�EU�
iCity�project.�
�

06/05/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Kit�Malthouse�

With�regards�to�the�GLA’s�
withdrawal�from�the�iCity�
consortium,�other�than�officer�time�
associated�with�the�proposed�non-
funding�cooperation�partner�role,�
there�are�no�further�costs�

P
age 32



� � � � � � � � � �

2.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£76,200�on�continued�service�provision�
required�from�Citi�Logik�Limited�to�enable�the�GLA�to�meet�its�
remaining�technical�and�contractual�obligations�during�the�notice�
period�applicable�to�its�withdrawal�from�the�iCity�project�consortium.�
�

anticipated.�
�
With�regards�to�the�proposed�
extension�of�the�Citi�Logik�contract;�
the�£39,550�relating�to�the�services�
provided�in�2013-14�has�been�
accrued�and�will�therefore�be�
accounted�for�within�the�2013-14�
accounts�and�funded�from�the�
ICITY�Programme�budget�for�2013-
14.�The�balance�of�£36,650�payable�
in�2014-15�will�be�funded�from�the�
budget�allocated�for�the�iCity�
Programme�in�2014-15.�
�

MD1345� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£25m�of�the�Growing�Places�Fund�(GPF)�on�
the�provision�of�funding�to�SME�Wholesale�Finance�Limited�(albeit�
with�repayment�terms)�to�deliver�the�programme�of�investments�set�
out�in�this�decision.��
�

18/06/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Kit�Malthouse�

The�decision�requires�the�GLA�to�
commit�£25�million�towards�overall�
project�costs�of�£26.6�million�with�
SMEWFL�contributing�£1.6�million�
or�6%�of�the�total.�Investments�of�
£23�million�(£24�million�including�
fees)�will�be�made�with�£2.6�million�
required�to�fund�operational�costs.�
The�GLA’s�contribution�will�be�
capital�grant�funding�from�the�
Growing�Places�Fund.�Investment�
fees�and�the�operational�costs�are�
integral�to�the�placing�of�the�
investments�and�the�GLA’s�share�of�
these�will�therefore�be�funded�as�
capital�expenditure.�
�
Investments�are�expected�to�begin�
to�be�made�by�the�end�of�2014�and�
through�until�September�2017.�Exit�
proceeds�are�assumed�to�be�
realised�from�late�in�2019�and�on�

P
age 33



� � � � � � � � � �

the�basis�of�SMEWFL’s�base�case�
which�assumes�a�33�per�cent�failure�
rate,�these�could�be�sufficient�to�
enable�repayment�of�the�full�£25�
million�investment�by�June�2022.��
�

MD1338� Approved:�
�
1.�The�variations�to�the�development�agreement�with�Offley�Works�
Ltd�&�Matching�Green�Ltd�as�set�out�in�the�decision�form�and�that�
the�sale�of�the�site�is�brought�forward.�
�
Part�2�of�this�report�is�confidential�under�the�FOI�Act�
�

30/05/14� Boris�Johnson/�
Richard�Blakeway�

The�proposed�variation�to�the�
original�development�agreement�
changes�this�asset’s�disposal�from�a�
disposal�via�lease�drawdown�to�a�
freehold�disposal.��This�has�no�
effect�on�the�sales�price�which�also�
meets�the�requirements�of�best�
consideration�in�that�the�
consideration�for�disposal�exceeds�
the�unrestricted�value�of�the�land.�
�
The�current�occupational�lease�
requires�a�contribution�from�GLAP�
of�£150k�towards�tenant�holding�
costs�which�will�be�waived�by�the�
developer�upon�the�variation.��This�
will�be�documented�in�the�variation.�
�
The�Offley�Works�project�has�a�
budget�of�£5,000�in�2014-15�to�
cover�disposal�costs.�
�

DD1231� Approved:�
�
1.�The�expenditure�of�up�to�£115,000�on�a�marketing�campaign�to�
raise�awareness�of�Team�London’s�new�micro-volunteering�
functionality�and�that�volunteering�can�be�a�route�to�work�for�young�
Londoners.��This�will�be�funded�through�£65,000�of�the�Technology�
Strategy�Board�money�under�MD1247�and�£50,000�of�the�Team�
London�budget�from�MD1341.�
�

17/06/14� Jeff�Jacobs� The�£115,000�estimated�cost�of�
this�marketing�campaign�will�be�
part�funded�from�the�2014-15�
Team�London�Programme�budget�
as�approved�by�MD1341�up�to�the�
value�of�£50,000,�with�the�balance�
of�£65,000�being�funded�via�a�
budget�transfer�from�the�Smart�
London�Demonstrator�Programme�

P
age 34



� � � � � � � � � �

2.�The�engagement�of�marketing’s�contracted�or�preferred�suppliers�
from�the�TfL�framework�in�delivering�this�campaign.�
�

budget�held�within�the�
Environment�Unit�and�approved�by�
MD1247�to�the�Team�London�
budget�in�2014-15.��
�

DD1229� Approved:�
�
1.�£25,000�on�video�streaming,�video�management�and�load�
balancing�software�and�hardware�required�for�webcasting�and�
replacement�City�Hall�TV�service�that�is�used�for�viewing�Mayoral�and�
Assembly�meetings.�
�
2.�£120,200�for�services�to�be�commissioned�by�way�of�variation�of�
the�GLA’s�current�contract�with�its�broadcast�supplier,�Bowtie�TV�as�
follows:�
�

• £77,000�for�the�analysis�of�requirements,�installation�and�
configuration�of�software�and�services�to�provide�an�integrated�
solution�for�webcasting,�storing�and�managing�video�content�via�
the�GLA�Intranet�and�www.london.gov.uk�website.�

• £14,400�per�annum�for�the�duration�of�the�contract�(3�years�–�
March�2017)�for�all�support�and�maintenance�of�all�hardware,�
software�and�technical�services�being�implemented.�

17/06/14� Martin�Clarke� Approval�is�being�sought�for�
expenditure�of�up�to�£145,200�for�
the�provision�of�a�replacement�to�
the�current�City�Hall�TV�system�and�
to�upgrade�the�webcasting�of�
Mayoral�and�Assembly�meetings.�
�
The�expenditure�required�to�
provide�an�integrated�solution�for�
webcasting,�storing�and�managing�
video�content�via�the�GLA�Intranet�
and�www.london.gov.uk�website�of�
£77,000�and�£25,000�required�for�
webcasting�and�a�replacement�to�
the�current�City�Hall�TV�service�will�
be�funded�from�the�existing�2014-
15�TG�Programme�Delivery�Budget.�
�
The�on-going�annual�support�and�
maintenance�costs�of�£14,400�for�
three�years�up�to�March�2017�will�
be�contained�within�the�existing�TG�
revenue�budget.�
�

DD1228� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�£90,000�(plus�VAT)�on�creative�project�
management,�health�&�safety�and�on-site�production�services�(from�
Leopard�Film)�required�for�the�delivery�of�the�“Big�Commonwealth�
Dance”�mass�dance�event�on�Trafalgar�Square,�and�the�filming�of�the�
event.��
�

17/06/14� Jeff�Jacobs� The�total�cost�of�the�proposed�
contract�is�£90,000�and�will�be�
funded�from�the�Major�Culture�
Project�budget�for�2014-15,�
specifically�the�Big�Dance�allocation�
as�approved�by�MD1316.�

P
age 35



� � � � � � � � � �

2.�A�related�exemption�from�the�requirement�of�the�GLA’s�Contracts�
and�Funding�Code�to�call�off�such�services�from�a�framework�or�seek�
competitive�tenders�for�the�provision�of�such�services.����������������
�
�

DD1227� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�£318,600�by�way�of�grant�funding�to�the�Skills�
Funding�Agency�as�a�contribution�to�its�costs�for�an�employer�facing�
marketing�campaign�aimed�at�increasing�the�number�of�employers�
becoming�a�‘qualified�lead’�for�Apprenticeships�opportunities�in�
London.�
�
2.�The�revised�expenditure�profile�as�more�fully�described�in�section�
2.2�of�the�decision�form.��
�

17/06/14� Fiona�Fletcher-
Smith�

MD1282�approved�the�allocation�of�
up�to�£1�million�from�the�Growing�
Places�Fund�(GPF)�to�deliver�the�
London�Apprenticeships�Marketing�
Campaign.�
�
Approval�is�sought�to�grant�fund�up�
to�£318,600�to�the�Skills�Funding�
Agency�in�2014-15�to�conduct�a�
marketing�campaign�to�increase�the�
number�of�Apprenticeship�
opportunities�in�London�(to�be�
governed�by�funding�agreements).�
This�will�be�funded�from�existing�
£1m�GPF�allocation.��
�

DD1225� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�a�maximum�of�£80,000�from�the�2014-15�
rough�sleeping�budget�to�be�allocated�as�grant�funding�to�local�
authorities�willing�to�be�part�of�a�‘No�First�Night�Out’�pilot.�
��
2.�The�allocation�of�this�funding�in�parallel�with�the�Department�of�
Communities�and�Local�Government’s�forthcoming�‘Preventing�
Homelessness’�funding.������
�

10/06/14� David�Lunts� The�total�cost�will�be�funded�from�
the�2014/15�Rough�Sleeping�
budget,�with�spend�of�£30,000�
being�incurred�in�2014-15�and�
£50,000�in�2015-16.�

DD1224� Approved:�
�
1.�The�giving�of�consent�to�Transport�for�London�to�oppose�the�High�
Speed�Rail�(London�to�West�Midlands)�Bill�under�section�167�of�the�
Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999.�
�

11/06/14� Fiona�Fletcher-
Smith�

There�will�be�no�direct�financial�
implications�for�the�GLA�arising�
from�TfL’s�Petition.�

P
age 36



� � � � � � � � � �

DD1223� Approved:�
�
1.�To�give�consent,�under�Section�213�of�the�Localism�Act�2011,�to�
the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation’s�decision�to�provide�
grant�assistance�of�£150,000�to�Artaha�Productions�Limited�to�
deliver�the�Great�British�Carnival�(GBC)�anniversary�event�in�Queen�
Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�on�Sunday�27�July�2014.�
�

29/05/14� Jamie�Ratcliff��
(pp�David�Lunts)�

The�funding�has�been�approved�
through�the�LLDC’s�internal�project�
approval�process.�Artaha�has�also�
applied�for�Arts�Council�England�
(ACE)�funding�to�support�the�
event,�a�decision�on�which�is�
expected�in�early�June.�If�ACE�
funding�is�not�secured,�specific�
artistic�content�will�be�removed,�
without�major�impact�to�the�overall�
scale�of�the�event.�
�

DD1209*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£38,000�to�procure�services�required�to�
deliver�an�email�communications�strategy�in�2014-15�and�procure�a�
new�email�service�provider�for�the�GLA�communication�campaigns�
for�three�years�from�2014-15.�
�
2.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£31,000�to�procure�a�web�development�
supplier�to�integrate�the�new�email�communications�strategy�with�
the�GLA’s�existing�and�new�corporate�websites�across�2014-15�and�
2015-16.�
�
3.�An�exemption�from�the�Contracts�and�Funding�code�on�the�basis�
of�compatibility�with�an�existing�service�for�the�extension�of�the�
GLA’s�existing�email�service�provider�contract�on�a�3�month�rolling�
basis�with�Teradata�(UK)�Limited�until�the�strategy�and�tender�work�
is�complete;�estimated�expenditure�of�£4,000�from�May�to�October�
2014.���
�

07/05/14� Will�Walden� Costs�in�2014-15�are�to�be�met�
from�the�2014-15�Marketing�and�
Digital�Teams’�budgets,�held�within�
the�External�Relations�Unit�
(External�Affairs�directorate).�Costs�
in�future�years�estimated�at�
£28,000�are�to�make�first�call�on�
the�same�budgets�in�these�future�
years,�subject�to�the�normal�budget�
approvals�process.�

DD1193*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�a�maximum�value�of�£100,000�from�the�
Local�Enterprise�Partnerships�Strategic�Plans�Funding�to�commission�
a�cluster�analysis�of�London’s�science�and�technology�sector�through�
a�competitive�tendering�process.��

24/04/14� Fiona�Fletcher-
Smith�

The�estimated�cost�of�this�contract�
is�up�to�£100,000.�It�is�expected�
the�commission�will�be�wholly�
undertaken�in�2014-15.�
�
The�revenue�cost�of�£100,000�will�

P
age 37



� � � � � � � � � �

be�funded�from�the�2013-14�Local�
Enterprise�Partnerships�Strategic�
Plans�Funding,�for�which�the�GLA�is�
the�Accountable�Body.�
�

DD1179*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£60,000�for�2014-15�to�procure�a�contract�
to�deliver�an�enhanced�London�DataStore.�
�

02/04/14� Jeff�Jacobs� The�total�estimated�cost�of�the�
contract�is�£60,000�which�will�be�
funded�by�a�£50,000�contribution�
from�2014-15�Central�Programme�
Budget�and�£10,000�from�External�
Affairs�budget�approved�as�part�of�
the�2014-15�budget�process.�
�

DD1169*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£120,000�to�fund�the�preparation�of�a�
Development�Infrastructure�Funding�study�for�Old�Oak�Common�
within�2014-15,�funded�via�a�transfer�from�the�Pre-Application�
Planning�Reserve.�
�
2.�The�GLA’s�role�as�the�lead�client�and�to�procure�a�private�
consultant�(or�consortium�of�consultants)�to�prepare�this�DIF�study.�
There�is�no�available�framework�and�therefore�the�procurement�will�
be�carried�out�through�a�competitive�tender�and�compliance�with�
OJEU�requirements.�
�

05/03/14� Fiona�Fletcher-
Smith�

The�estimated�cost�of�this�work�is�
£120,000.�This�will�be�fully�funded�
from�the�pre-application�planning�
reserve�and�the�work�will�start�and�
complete�in�2014-15.�
�

DD1167*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£80,000�for�the�procurement�of�a�new�IT�
system�for�providing�remote�access�to�the�City�Hall�IT�network�and�
software�applications.�

19/02/14� Martin�Clarke� The�total�estimated�cost�of�the�
procurement�and�implementation�
of�the�system�is�£80,000�which�is�
made�up�of�the�following�elements:���
�
1.�Technical�support�and�
maintenance�is�£5,000�per�annum�
which�will�be�funded�from�
Technology�Programme�Delivery�
Revenue�Budget�for�a�period�of�3�
years.�

P
age 38



� � � � � � � � � �

�
2.�The�capital�cost�comprises�of�
hardware�and�software�for�the�
remote�access�system�of�£40,000.�
�
3.�Implementation�costs�of�£10,000�
and�the�cost�of�user�and�device�
licences�of�£15,000.��
�

DD938*� Approved:�
�
1.�The�award�of�Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund�grant�funding�to�the�
London�Borough�of�Haringey�for�the�delivery�of�its�Stadium�
Approach�project.�
�
2.�The�entry�into�and�execution�(by�the�Executive�Director�of�
Resources�on�behalf�of�the�GLA)�of�a�funding�agreement�with�the�
London�Borough�of�Haringey�governing�the�GLA’s�provision�of�the�
funding.���
�
Part�2�of�this�report�is�confidential�under�the�FOI�Act�
�

06/12/12� Fiona�Fletcher-
Smith�

The�financial�comments�related�to�
this�decision�are�included�in�the�
part�2�confidential�paper�as�their�
disclosure�is�likely�to�prejudice�the�
commercial�interests�of�the�GLA�
and/or�LB�Haringey.��
�

DD917*� Approved:�
�
1.�The�allocation�of�funding�of�up�to�£50,000�to�meet�the�costs�of�a�
feasibility�study�looking�at�how�to�enhance�the�information�advice�
and�guidance�available�to�young�people�in�London�by�providing�
additional�support�to�London�schools,�with�any�remaining�funding�
not�used�in�the�feasibility�study�used�for�engagement�activities�with�
employers�and�other�key�stakeholders.�
�
2.�The�procurement,�award�of�(to�the�bidder�submitting�the�most�
economically�advantageous�bid),�entry�into�(with�a�value�of�up�to�
£50,000)�and�execution�(by�the�Director�of�Resources)�of�a�contract�
with�a�consultancy�organisation�to�undertake�feasibility�study�service�
in�this�regard.�
�

28/11/12� Jeff�Jacobs� The�estimated�cost�of�£50,000�for�
this�project�will�be�funded�from�the�
2012-13�Children�&�Young�Peoples�
Programme�budget�held�within�the�
Health�&�Communities�Unit.�

P
age 39



� � � � � � � � � �

ADD206� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£15,000�on�MEC�Media�Agency�to�deliver�
promoted�social�media�activity�to�support�driving�traffic�to�the�Team�
London�website.�
�

17/06/14� Natalie�Cramp� The�total�estimated�cost�of�this�
proposal�is�£15,000�and�will�be�
funded�from�the�2014-15�Team�
London�Programme�budget�as�
approved�by�MD1341.�

ADD205� Approved:�
�
1.�Funding�of�up�to�£40,800�to�fund�five�workstreams�within�the�
GLA�Health�Team�programme:�

• A�joint�alcohol�campaign�with�London�Ambulance�Service�

• Awareness�raising�events�for�HIV,�breast�cancer�and�mental�
health�

• Urban�planning�for�health�work�

• The�refresh�of�the�delivery�plan�of�the�Health�Inequalities�
strategy�

• Public�Health�professional�issues.�
�

17/06/14� Amanda�Coyle� This�will�be�funded�via�a�virement�
from�the�Authority’s�2014-15�
Central�Programme�budget�to�the�
Health�Programme�held�within�the�
Health�&�Communities�Unit.��
�

ADD204� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£25,000�for:��
�

• the�research�and�writing�services�of�Kings�College�London�for�an�
“Age�Friendly�London”�report�(£10,027);�and�supplies�and�
services�required�for�design�and�print�of�an�Age�Friendly�
London”�report�(up�to�£4,973);�and���

�

• supplies�and�services�required�for�the�writing,�design�and�print�of�
a�“Friendly�London”�report�(up�to�£10,000).�

�
2.�An�exemption�from�the�requirement�of�section�4.1�of�the�GLA’s�
Contracts�and�Funding�Code�for�research�and�writing�services�
required�to�publish�the�“Age�Friendly�London”�report.�
�

17/06/14� Amanda�Coyle� The�total�cost�of�this�proposal�is�up�
to�£25,000�and�will�be�funded�via�a�
virement�from�the�Authority’s�
Central�Programme�budget�for�
2014-15�to�the�Diversity�&�Social�
Policy�Programme�budget�held�
within�the�Health�&�Communities�
Unit.��
�

ADD203� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£11,500�to�appoint�Blue�State�Digital�Ltd�

10/06/14� Emma�Strain� The�total�estimated�cost�of�£11,500�
to�review�the�strategy�will�be�
funded�from�the�Marketing�

P
age 40



� � � � � � � � � �

(BSD)�to�review�the�GLA’s�social�media�strategy�in�two�periods�
across�one�year�(approximately�September�2014�and�July�2015).�
�
2.�An�exemption�from�the�Contracts�and�Funding�Code�from�the�
requirement�to�seek�three�or�more�written�quotes�or�call�off�from�a�
framework�on�the�basis�that�BSD�is�best�placed�to�review�the�
strategy�it�recommended�and�provide�recommendations�for�
improvement.�
�

Programme�budget.�It�should�be�
noted�that�the�expenditure�will�
occur�between�two�financial�years;�
£7,500�in�2014-2015�and�£4,000�
from�2015-16.�

ADD202� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£16,000�to�procure�high�specification�
computers�and�specialist�software�to�enable�additional�project�staff�
to�work�and�deliver�on�the�new�London.gov.uk�website�project.�

04/06/14� Emma�Strain� The�total�estimated�cost�of�the�
equipment�and�software�is�
£16,000,�which�will�be�funded�from�
the�2014-2015�Digital�Programmes�
budget�held�within�the�External�
Relations�Unit.�
�

ADD200� Approved:�
�
1.�The�award�of�a�grant�of�up�to�£25,000�to�Capital�Age�Festival�
(2002)�Limited�for�the�Capital�Age�Festival�taking�place�in�July�2014,�
as�a�contribution�to�the�design,�creative�and�infrastructure�costs�of�
the�festival.�
�

09/06/14� Paul�Igbokwe� The�grant�funding�of�up�to�£25,000�
is�to�be�met�from�the�2014-15�
Community�Relation�Programme�
Budget,�held�by�the�Public�&�
Community�Engagement�Unit,�
External�Affairs�Directorate.�

ADD168*� Approved:�
�
1.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£7,000�for�a�film�about�the�Well�London�
programme.�
�
2.�Expenditure�of�up�to�£10,000�for�marketing�and�communications�
(including�media)�support�from�May�2014�to�March�2015�for�the�
Well�London�programme.�
�

20/03/14� Amanda�Coyle� The�total�estimated�cost�of�this�
proposal�is�£17,000�and�will�be�
funded�from�Big�Lottery�Income,�
the�receipt�of�which�was�approved�
via�MD1206�for�the�Well�London�
Programme�2013�to�2015,�which�is�
held�within�the�Health�&�
Communities�Unit.�

�

P
age 41



P
age 42

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	4 Mayor's Report
	Decision List


